DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

CLAconnect.com
WEALTH ADVISORY
OUTSOURCING
AUDIT, TAX, AND
CONSULTING

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

20

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

21

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

22

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULES OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
CONTRIBUTIONS

58

SCHEDULES OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY AND
CONTRIBUTIONS

59

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

60

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Trustees
Delaware State University
Dover, Delaware
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of Delaware State University (the University) (a component unit of
the state of Delaware), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audits. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Delaware State University Foundation, Inc., the discretely
presented component unit of the University (the Foundation), for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the report of
the other auditors. We and the other auditors conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the University as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
and the respective change in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
Report on Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability,
schedule of proportionate share of OPEB liability, and schedules of contributions as listed in the table of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
December 18, 2020
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Delaware State University’s (the University) financial
statements provides an overview of the University’s financial activities for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, with comparative amounts for 2018. Management has prepared the financial
statements and the related footnote disclosures along with this discussion and analysis. Responsibility
for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the preparer. This discussion and
analysis contains financial activities of Delaware State University only (exclusive the component unit).
Financial Highlights:
 The University’s total net position increased by $12.32 million or 11.4% to ($95.7 million) as of
June 30, 2020 and by a decrease by $0.8 million or (0.8%) as of June 30, 2019.


During fiscal year 2015, the University implemented GASB No. 68, which resulted in a
$37.5 million liability in fiscal year 2020 compared to a $31.6 million liability in fiscal year 2019.



For fiscal year 2020, the University’s operating expenses were $65.0 million greater than the
operating revenue and $62.5 million greater than the operating revenue for fiscal year 2019.



During fiscal year 2018, the University implemented GASB No. 75, which resulted in a
$187.0 million liability in fiscal year 2020 compared to a $196.0 million liability in fiscal year
2019.



In fiscal years 2020 and 2019, State appropriations were 29.9% and 23.8%, respectively, of
total operating expenses.



As of June 30, 2020, and 2019, debt as a percentage of net capital assets was 37.2% and
49.2%, respectively.



Total net position as a ratio of total operating expenses was (0.66) times and (0.74) times for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.



For fiscal years 2020 and 2019, debt as a percentage of net position was (86.7%) and (96.5%),
respectively.



For fiscal years 2020 and 2019, unrestricted net position as a percentage of total net position
was (242%) and (222%), respectively.
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Graphically displayed, the comparative net position balances by category and fiscal year, follow:
Delaware State University
Net Assets
150
100
50

Millions

0
-50

-100
-150

2020

-200

2019

-250

2018

-300
2020
2019
2018

Net Investment in Capital
Assets
123,372,355
120,867,353
121,724,415

Restricted

Unrestricted

12,811,471
10,642,732
5,577,840

(231,872,506)
(239,519,119)
(234,497,083)

The following chart provides a graphical breakdown of revenue by category for the fiscal years ended
June 30:
Delaware State University
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Significant financial highlights for fiscal year 2020 are as follows:
The University’s overall financial position increased in 2020 by $12.3 million.
Total revenue increased $14.2 million in fiscal year 2020, primarily due to support from the Federal
CARES Act of $13.5 million and an increase in state appropriations of $7.3 million offset by, a decrease
of $8.9 million in operating revenue.
Operating expenses reflects a decrease of $6.4 million as a result of decreased in pension expense,
bad debt expense, rental expense and contractual expenses offset by increased in OPEB expense,
student aid expense and payroll expenses.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses increased in fiscal year 2020 by $13.9 million. Increases include
the federal CARES Act funds of $13.5 million and an increase in state appropriations of $7.3 million.
Support to the University from the Foundation decreased by $7.3 million.
Other revenue increased $1.8 million due to A prior year loss on disposal of capital assets of $2 million.
Significant financial highlights for fiscal year 2019 are as follows:
The University’s overall financial position decreased in 2019 by $0.8 million.
Total revenue increased $19.0 million in fiscal year 2019, primarily due to support to Delaware State
University from University Foundation of $7.3 million along with an increase of $7.9 million in capital
appropriations, an increase of $3.0 million in operating revenue, a $0.7 million increase in nonoperating
revenue.
Operating expenses reflects an increase of $8.4 million due increases under the collective bargaining
agreements to include pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as well as additional living
expenses.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses increased in fiscal year 2019 by $8.1 million. Increases are
noted under support to Delaware State University from University Foundation of $7.3 million, an
increase under state appropriations of $0.1 million, an increase in Pell Grant revenue of $0.5 million,
investment income increase $0.1 million, a decrease in interest expense $.075 million and a decrease
of .1 million in net gain on investments.
Other revenue increased $6.3 million due to an increase in State Minor Capital Improvement funds.
Using this Discussion and Analysis
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the University’s basic financial
statements. This report consists of three basic financial statements: the statement of net position; the
statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position; and the statement of cash flows. These
three statements provide information on the University as a whole. Consistent with the types of
programs and services generally associated with higher education institutions, the University has
classified its operating expenses into the following categories: instructional, organized research, public
service, academic support, student services, institutional support, operation and maintenance of plant,
and auxiliary enterprises.
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The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net
Position
One of the most important questions asked about the University’s finances is, “is Delaware State
University as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The statement of net
position and the statement of revenue, expenses, and change in net position report information on the
University as a whole and on its activities in a way that helps answer this question. When revenue and
other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net position. When the opposite occurs, the
result is a decrease in net position. The relationship between operating revenue plus noncapital state
appropriations and expenses may be thought of as Delaware State University’s operating results taken
as a whole.
Delaware State University’s net position and related change in net position is one way to measure the
University’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the University’s
net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving. However, several nonfinancial
factors are relevant as well, such as the trend and quality of student applicants, freshman class size,
student retention, physical plant condition, and campus safety, to assess the overall health of the
University.
The aforementioned statements include all assets and liabilities of the University using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is the same accounting method used by private-sector institutions. Under
this method of accounting, all of the current year’s resources, obligations, revenue, and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Statements of Net Position
2020

2019

2018

NET POSITION
Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$ 38,850,237
318,381,348
357,231,585

Deferred Outflows

29,874,833

19,702,090

23,045,299

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

29,124,619
336,033,511
365,158,130

23,136,054
341,166,063
364,302,117

15,438,315
349,608,253
365,046,568

Deferred Inflows

117,636,968

35,974,801

30,718,428

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

123,372,355
12,811,471
(231,872,506)
(95,688,680)
$ 12,320,354
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$

22,342,951
250,222,843
272,565,794

$

13,516,755
252,008,114
265,524,869

120,867,353
10,642,732
(239,519,119)
$ (108,009,034)

121,724,415
5,577,840
(234,497,083)
$ (107,194,828)

$

$ (10,751,671)

(814,206)
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Significant changes in the 2020 net position, compared to 2019, follow:
 Current assets increased by $16.5 million. The increase was due to an overall increase in
receivables of $4.8 million, an increase of $2.9 million in funds available from state treasurer
and an increase of $7.8 million in cash


Noncurrent assets increased by $68.2 million, primarily due to completion of the public private
partnership agreement (P3) for a new student facility project net of annual depreciation
expense.



Deferred outflows increased by $10.17 million as a result of increase in net pension of
$.4 million and an increase of $9.66 million in OPEB.



Current liabilities increased by $5.99 million, primarily due to increases in unearned revenue
and accrued employee compensation.



Long-term liabilities decreased by $5.1 million, mainly from a decrease in OPEB liability of
$9.0 million as required by GASB No. 74 and a $4.3 million decrease due to payment of longterm obligations offset by an increase of $5.9 million in net pension liability as required by GASB
68 and an increase in capital lease obligation



Deferred inflows increased by $81.6 million due to the changes mainly related to the P3 project
completion, and OPEB.

Significant changes in the 2019 net position, compared to 2018, follow:
 Current assets increased by $8.8 million. The increase was due to an overall increase in
receivables of $4.1 million and an increase of $5.5 million in funds available from state
treasurer.


Noncurrent assets decreased by $1.8 million, primarily due to removal of one residence hall
(Tubman Hall) and site work for the preparation of a new residence hall and P3 project net of
annual depreciation expense.



Deferred outflows decreased by $3.3 million as a result of decrease in net pension of
$3.8 million and an increase of $0.5 million in OPEB.



Current liabilities increased by $7.7 million, primarily due to increases in accounts payable,
accrued employee compensation, Long-Term Debt-Current Portion and deferred summer tuition
revenue offset by decreases in unearned revenue.



Long-term liabilities decreased by $8.4 million, mainly from a decrease in net pension liability of
$4.4 million as required by GASB No. 68, a $2.1 million decrease due to payment of long-term
obligations and an decrease $2.7 million in OPEB liability as required by GASB 75 along with
increases of $0.7 million under agency funds held for others.



Deferred inflows increased by $5.3 million due to the changes mainly related to the net pension
liability and OPEB.
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Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
2020
OPERATING REVENUE
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship
Allowance of $21.6, $20.5, and $21.2)
Government Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services of Educational Departments
Auxiliary Enterprises
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$

2019

38,935,063
17,575,524
195,959
20,370,288
3,188,227
80,265,061

$

2018

37,716,460
19,753,800
326,002
26,151,786
5,224,046
89,172,094

$

30,639,208
19,376,864
296,218
24,938,687
4,898,610
80,149,587

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instructional
Organized Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Depreciation
Student Aid
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Expenses

43,482,198
19,452,927
657,423
5,252,759
13,400,686
20,132,622
10,807,266
9,935,313
6,391,516
15,729,195
145,241,905

44,540,197
12,498,669
3,075,498
6,369,347
16,827,762
25,696,376
8,917,728
9,548,517
5,143,173
19,052,100
151,669,367

45,176,158
12,361,098
3,131,264
4,927,424
14,029,519
17,358,455
9,137,472
9,663,033
4,944,176
17,550,741
138,279,340

OPERATING LOSS

(64,976,844)

(62,497,273)

(58,129,753)

NONOPERATING REVENUE

64,191,307

50,332,844

42,327,530

OTHER REVENUE

13,105,891

11,350,223

5,050,552

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

12,320,354

Net Position - Beginning of Year - As Previously
Reported

(108,009,034)

Restatement - Adoption of GASB 75
Net Position - Beginning of Year - As Restated
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

-

(814,206)

(107,194,828)
-

(10,751,671)

121,366,279
(217,809,436)

(108,009,034)

(107,194,828)

(96,443,157)

$ (95,688,680)

$ (108,009,034)

$ (107,194,828)

(9)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Significant changes in revenue for fiscal year 2020 are as follows:
 The University experienced a slight decrease in its scholarship program in 2020. Net student
revenue includes scholarship allowances of $24.2 million in fiscal year 2020 compared to
$24.9 million in fiscal year 2018.


Government grants and contracts increased in fiscal 2020 by $11.1 million, principally from an
increase in several federally funded grant awards and the Federal CARES Act grants.



Auxiliary enterprise revenue decreased in fiscal year 2020 by $5.8 million from $26.2 million in
fiscal year 2019 compared to $24.9 million in fiscal year 2018. The decrease is primarily the
result of the pandemic when students were sent home and the campus closed.



Nonoperating revenue (expense) increased by $13.9 million. This is due primarily to support
from the Federal CARES Act of $13.5 million and state appropriations.

Significant changes in revenue for fiscal year 2019 are as follows:


The University experienced a slight decrease in its scholarship program in 2019. Net student
revenue includes scholarship allowances of $21.6 million in fiscal year 2019 compared to
$22.8 million in fiscal year 2018.



Government grants and contracts increased in fiscal 2019 by $0.4 million, principally from an
increase in several federally funded grant awards.



Auxiliary enterprise revenue increased in fiscal year 2019 by $1.2 million from $26.2 million in
fiscal year 2019 compared to $24.9 million in fiscal year 2018.



Nonoperating revenue (expense) increased by $8.0 million. This is due primarily to support from
the University Foundation of $7.3 million along with other increases of $0.7 million from Pell
grants, investment income, and state appropriations.

Significant changes in expenses for fiscal year 2020 are as follows:


Organized research, public service, academic support, student services and instructional
support increased by $7.5 million primarily related to the adverse effect of the current pandemic.



Auxiliary enterprise expenses decreased $3.3 million during the year due to hotel expenses for
students along with mandated salary increases spreading over a three-year period.



Instructional expense decreased by $1.1 million primarily due to changes in pension and OPEB
costs, the ratification of the CBA which included mandated salary increases spread over a
three-year period.



Institutional support decreased by $5.6 million due to less bad debt expense and benefits
expense.
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Significant changes in expenses for fiscal year 2019 are as follows:


Organized research, public service, academic support, student services and instructional
support increased by $6.0 million primarily due to an increase of $2.9 million in pension and
OPEB costs, the ratification of the CBA which included mandated salary increases spreading
over a three-year period.



Auxiliary enterprise expenses increased $2.1 million during the year due to hotel expenses for
students along with mandated salary increases spreading over a three-year period.



Instructional expense decreased by $1.5 million primarily due to changes in pension and OPEB
costs, the ratification of the CBA which included mandated salary increases spread over a
three-year period.



Student services and auxiliary enterprise expenses increased by $1.3 million during the year.

Delaware State University
Operating Revenues
For the year ended June 30, 2020
Other Revenues
4%
Auxiliary Enterprises
25%

Student Tuition and Fees, Net
Government Grants
and Contracts
22%

Government Grants and Contracts

Sales and Services of Educational
Departments
Sales and Services
of Educational
Departments
1%

Auxiliary Enterprises

Other Revenue
Student Tuition
and Fees, Net
48%
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2020, the University had $296.6 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $174.3 million ($228.6 million at June 30, 2019, net of accumulated depreciation of
$164.3 million). Depreciation charges totaled $9.9 million for the current fiscal year compared to
$9.5 million in the prior year. Details of the capital assets, net at year-end are shown below:

Land, Land Improvements, and Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Construction in Progress
Service Concession Arrangement
Equipment
Total

2020
$ 18,149,523
196,497,993
1,137,686
68,210,063
12,593,218
$ 296,588,483

Capital Assets, Net
2019
$ 19,437,750
196,350,720
4,815,568
7,946,499
$ 228,550,537

2018
19,378,529
202,635,508
546,854
8,923,058
$ 231,483,949
$

Major Capital Projects:
In sustaining the quality of the Delaware State University’s academic and research programs along with
residential life, is the development and maintenance of its capital assets through capital projects. These
projects included campus improvements with HVAC work, window replacement, and technology upgrades.
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Of the projects planned in FY 20, was the construction of a new student housing and dining facility. The
transaction was accounted for as a service concession arrangement as the building was capitalized for
$68.2 million. Capital additions in FY 20 comprised of the following:
Construction in Progress
Land Improvements and Infrastructure
Building Improvements
Service Concession Arrangement
Equipment
Total

$

645,563
287,076
3,953,740
68,210,063
4,876,816
$ 77,973,258

Debt Administration:
As of June 30, 2020, the University had $110.4 million in debt outstanding versus $111.9 million at
June 30, 2019.
On March 1, 2012, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $32,145,000 (par
value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The bonds are due October 1, 2036
and are secured by a pledge of certain unappropriated revenue of the University. The 2012 bonds were
issued as “Additional Bonds” under the Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds
issued and outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness as provided in the
Indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2012 Bonds were used to finance: (1) the
refunding of certain maturities of The Delaware Economic Development Authority Revenue Refunding
Bonds (Delaware State University Project) Series 1999; (2) the purchase of the University Village, a
four building, 628-bed student housing facility and dining hall located on the campus of the University,
the construction of which was financed by the Kent County, Delaware Variable Rate Demand Student
Housing Revenue Bonds (Delaware State University Student Housing Foundation Project) Series
2004B; (3) the funding of any required reserve funds relating to the 2012 Bonds; and (4) the costs of
issuance and any credit enhancement of the 2012 Bonds. As of June 30, 2020, $24,502,101 including
$1,302,101 of unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the 2012 revenue bonds.
On December 11, 2014, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $29,225,000
(par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The bonds are due October 1, 2039
and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The 2014 bonds were issued as
“Additional Bonds” under the Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and
outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness outstanding as provided in the
Indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2014 bonds, together with other available
funds, were used to finance: (1) purchase of the University Courtyard, a 416-bed student housing facility
located on campus from the Delaware State University Housing Foundation; (2) construction, equipping,
and furnishing of an optical science center for applied research; (3) acquisition and capital improvement
of the former Sheraton Hotel and Convention Center, now known as the Living and Learning Commons,
a 264-bed student housing facility and space used by Delaware State University Early College High
School. As of June 30, 2020, $28,775,330 including $3,085,330 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2014 revenue bonds.
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On April 3, 2017, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of $42,680,000 (par
value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The bonds mature between April 3,
2017 and October 1, 2039 and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The
2017 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the indenture, secured equally and eatable with
all other Bonds issued and outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness
outstanding as provided in the indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2017 bonds,
together with other available funds, were used to refund the 2007 revenue series bonds. Series 2017
revenue bonds issued as refunding bonds, the proceeds of which were used to refund the series 2007
for a net present value savings of $3.5 million, or 7.37% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear
coupons between 3.0% and 5.0% and yield between 1.17% and 3.99%. The 2007 bonds were secured
for the construction of a new student union, a swimming pool, and a student wellness/recreation center.
As of June 30, 2020, $42,825,899 including $2,515,899 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2017 revenue bonds.
Energy efficiency refunding revenue bonds in the amount of $9,690,000 were issued through the State
of Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. on April 30, 2020. The bonds are due September 15, 2034,
and are limited obligations of the University, payable only from amounts appropriated by the State that
are eligible for payment of the Installment Payments pursuant to the Energy Performance Contracting
Act. The 2020 bonds are equally and ratably secured by the trust estate, and failure of the State to
appropriate each year sufficient available funds will cause insufficient funds to be deposited into the
bond fund to pay all principal and interest on the bonds when due.
The proceeds of the 2020 bonds were used to refinance and defease, for interest rate savings, the
Energy Efficiency Bonds, Series 2011 and pay costs of issuance. The refunding resulted in a difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $105,891. This
difference, reported in the accompanying statement of net position as a deferred outflow of resources,
will be amortized to interest expense through the year 2032. The debt restructure provides a net
economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and new debt service payments) of
$778,557. Total gross debt service over the next 12 years will decrease by $918,418. As of June 30,
2020, $9,690,000 remained outstanding on the 2020 energy efficiency bonds.
For fiscal year 2020, adherence to GASB No. 68 resulted in a $37.5 million net pension liability.
For fiscal year 2020, adherence to GASB No. 75, resulting in a $187.0 million net OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2020.

Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Notes Payable
Capital Lease Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
Total

2020
$ 187,006,094
37,534,188
2,123,219
2,454,554
105,793,330
$ 334,911,385

Outstanding Debt
2019
$ 195,965,955
31,626,962
2,462,627
109,509,744
$ 339,565,288

2018
$ 198,679,926
36,106,491
808,120
113,071,263
$ 348,665,800

Detailed information about the University’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Summary of Operations
Delaware State University is a public historically black university located in Dover, Delaware with two
satellite campus (Wilmington & Georgetown). Established in 1891, it has grown to close to 5,054
students as of the Fall of 2019. In addition to student growth, the physical infrastructure has grown as
well from a 100-acre property with three buildings to over 350 acres to include over 50 buildings and
4 outdoor athletic fields.
Housing Occupancy for 2019-2020
Dec 2019 (end of Fall semester) – 95 %
May 2020 (end of Spring semester) – 88.4 %
University Highlights
Early College High School
The Early College High School (ECHS) at Delaware State University is the state’s first public charter
early high school. Classes began on August 24, 2015, as of fall 2020 the enrollment is 399. The ECHS
features curriculum with a strong emphasis in STEM (science, technology, engineering, and
mathematics). The dual enrollment model provides ECHS students with the opportunity to earn up to
60 college credits while earning their high school diploma. The University graduated its third class of
Early College High School students in May of 2020. The class of 2020 earned 1,989 college credits. Of
the 73 members of the 2020 graduating class, 62% matriculated to DSU. Based upon the success of
these students and the current matriculation rate, the investment in the Early College High School is
projected to continue to be sustainable for the University.
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
Delaware State University continues to be one of the Institutional Partnership (IP) Sites with the Gates
Foundation. Now in its 6th year of continued funding, all IP Sites are committed to transforming their
organizations to ensure that more students-especially low-income, first-generation students as well as
students of color successfully matriculate and graduate at higher rates, with high-quality degrees or
certificates at an affordable price. Ongoing initiatives include the University’s digital initiative where
each incoming freshmen and regular rank faculty receive iPad with the expectation that we are digital
by fall 2020; thereby decreasing book costs for students. Additional initiatives include elimination of
developmental courses, and integration of planning and advising services providing each student with
an individualized development plan that follows them throughout their matriculation at DSU. The Gates
Foundation awarded the Foundation $1.2 million with an additional $424,000 in supplemental funding
through 2021.
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Delaware Institute for Science & Technology (DIST)
To support growth of DSU’s research capacity, in 2015, the DSU Board of Trustees approved the
establishment of the Delaware Institute for Science and Technology (DIST), DSU’s first institute
focused on supporting the development of science and technology research at DSU. DIST supports two
large multi-investigator research centers – the Optical Sciences Research Center (known as OSCAR),
and the Delaware Center for Neuroscience Research. DIST also supports three research core facilities
that provide access to state-of-the-art instrumentation and services for researchers at Delaware State
University, partner universities, government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and industry. The Cell
Electrophysiology Core Facility, a unique resource in Delaware, supports researchers in the
neuroscience, cell biology and biomedical engineering research communities in Delaware with access
to electrophysiological methods assess function in excitable cells, tissue and ion channels. The OSCAR
Imaging Core Facility offers advanced spectroscopy and microscope imaging services, from tissue
processing and staining to image acquisition with top-quality instruments. Services include digital
imaging with confocal, bright-field, fluorescent and polarization microscopes, scanning electron
microscopy, and light-sheet microscopy. The Delaware Nucleotide Analysis (DNA) Core Facility
provides MiSeq and Bioanalyzer services using Illumina NGS (Next Generation Sequencing)
instruments. DSU’s first research institute is housed in its first research building. Completed in 2015,
the OSCAR building contains state-of-the-art laboratory facilities, and is highly visible to the community
with its unique architecture and the prismatic qualities of its exterior.
First in the World Grant
Delaware State University (DSU) was one of 17 recipients of the First in the World grant program;
receiving $2.65M from the U.S. Department of Education in October 2015. The focus of the program
was to increase the number of applications, enrollment, and persistence in post-secondary education of
at-risk and underrepresented students. The Access to Success Project (A2S) allowed DSU, in
partnership with the American College Application Campaign, ACT, and the National Student
Clearinghouse, to use the College Match and Fit Toolkit (CMFT) to assist at-risk students in
determining a list of institutions to which they are most likely to be accepted, enrolled and persist
following high school. Post-secondary data from the National Student Clearinghouse and DSU was
collected and linked for analyses. The National Council for Community and Education Partnerships
(NCCEP) evaluated the program. After a one year no-cost extension, the program ended this fall, on
September 30, 2020.
DSU Fully Approved for Distance Learning Programs
Delaware State University is accredited through the Middle States Commission on Higher Education
(MSCHE) to offer degrees at the Bachelors, Masters and Doctoral levels. The University received full
approval from MSCHE to provide Distance Education Programs within the scope of the institution’s
accreditation in 2013 with approval of the online Sports Administration program and subsequently, in
2014 with approval of the Masters of Public Administration (MPA) online degree. Full approval was
granted to the University for a post-secondary certificate program in Information Security in 2013 and
post-baccalaureate online certificate programs in Teaching English as a Second Language, (TESOL)
as well as Teacher of English Language Learner (TELL)/Bilingual Teacher Certification in 2020. The
University currently offers four Graduate and five Undergraduate online programs and will launch the
online RN to MSN program in 2020.

(18)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(UNAUDITED)

Aviation Program
In FY 19, Delaware State University was awarded a grant for $3.4 million Delaware Higher Education
Economic Development to purchase 11 aircrafts for our aviation program. The Aviation Program
provides students with quality education and experience in preparation for careers in the aviation
industry. Curricula in the program lead to a Bachelor of Science degree with concentrations in Aviation
Management or Professional Pilot. With competitive overall flight lab fees, its own fleet of soon to be
15+ aircraft and an experienced and dedicated instructor staff, Delaware State University (DSU) is
simply the best Flight Education opportunity on the East Coast of the United States. Our aviation
program, the only one of its kind among historically black colleges and universities, is ready to take off
with their new aircraft fleet.
Request for Information
The financial report is intended to provide a general overview of the University’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in the report, or requests for additional information should
be addressed to the Division of Finance, 1200 North DuPont Highway, Dover, Delaware 19901.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
Delaware State University
2020
2019
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State Treasurer (Cash)
Students Receivables, Net
Government Grants Receivable, Net of Allowance
of $-0- as of June 30, 2020
and 2019, Respectively
Other Receivables
Total Current Assets

$

7,837,581
392,078
12,771,024
12,382,013

$

18,580
210,177
9,882,048
7,573,827

University Foundation
2020
2019
$

4,502,039
61,509
-

$

4,113,083
102,072
-

4,789,744
677,797
38,850,237

4,252,828
405,491
22,342,951

11,651
4,575,199

161,887
4,377,042

16,837,539
4,159,894
795,432
296,588,483
318,381,348
357,231,585

16,114,008
4,289,188
1,269,110
228,550,537
250,222,843
272,565,794

9,161,535
774,575
624,979
10,561,089
15,136,288

8,915,444
828,218
531,510
10,275,172
14,652,214

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB
Deferred Outflows Related to Pension
Deferred Loss on Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

15,554,706
13,645,137
674,990
29,874,833

5,897,391
13,200,846
603,853
19,702,090

-

-

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Primary Government
Accrued Employee Compensation
Accrued Interest
Unearned Summer Tuition Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Compensated Absences
Capital Lese Obligation - Current Portion
Long-Term Debt - Current Portion
Total Current Liabilities

10,725,595
6,240,755
1,140,557
2,329,345
3,956,836
699,124
4,428
4,027,979
29,124,619

10,135,117
4,726,904
1,140,557
1,924,421
653,087
772,989
3,782,979
23,136,054

685
196,240
196,925

33,364
390,660
424,024

336,461
4,818,072
187,006,094
37,534,188
2,450,126
103,888,570
336,033,511

677,658
4,706,096
195,965,955
31,626,962
108,189,392
341,166,063

62,776
62,776

66,976
66,976

365,158,130

364,302,117

259,701

491,000

1,521,438
67,004,919
48,005,501
1,105,110
117,636,968

1,631,514
31,901,777
2,441,510
35,974,801

-

-

123,372,355

120,867,353

-

-

10,539,570
2,271,901
-

9,131,819
1,510,913
-

3,454,922
3,037,528

2,546,642
3,993,090

5,723,932
2,660,205

5,511,929
2,109,553

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Other Assets
Capital Assets, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Agency Funds Held for Others
Compensated Absences
Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Capital Lease Obligation
Long-Term Debt
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to Grants
Related to Service Concession Arrangement
Related to OPEB
Related to Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Grants and Contracts
Scholarships
Nonscholarship Benefits and Programs
Restricted Nonexpendable:
Endowment
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

(231,872,506)

(239,519,119)

(95,688,680)

$ (108,009,034)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

14,876,587

$

14,161,214

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
Delaware State University
2020
2019
REVENUE
Operating Revenue:
Unpledged Revenue:
Government Grants and Contracts
Revenue of University Pledged as
Security for Bonds:
Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship
Allowances of $24,227,452 and $24,936,912)
Auxiliary Enterprises
Sales and Services of Educational Departments
Athletics
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$

17,575,524

$

19,753,800

University Foundation
2020
2019

$

-

$

-

38,935,063
20,370,288
195,959
858,451
2,329,776
80,265,061

37,716,460
26,151,786
326,002
1,818,065
3,405,981
89,172,094

570,800
570,800

808,075
808,075

EXPENSES
Operating Expenses:
Educational and General:
Instructional
Organized Research
Public Service
Academic Support
Student Services
Institutional Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Depreciation
Student Aid
Auxiliary Enterprises
Total Operating Expenses

43,482,198
19,452,927
657,423
5,252,759
13,400,686
20,132,622
10,807,266
9,935,313
6,391,516
15,729,195
145,241,905

44,540,197
12,498,669
3,075,498
6,369,347
16,827,762
25,696,376
8,917,728
9,548,517
5,143,173
19,052,100
151,669,367

2,361,447
3,801,356
6,162,803

1,854,278
3,137,756
4,992,034

OPERATING LOSS

(64,976,844)

(62,497,273)

(5,592,003)

(4,183,959)

43,434,322
10,298,803
13,476,771
243,844
172,165
1,205,144
(4,639,742)
64,191,307

36,123,603
10,471,361
607,513
308,603
7,300,000
(4,478,236)
50,332,844

6,065,683
226,272
15,421
6,307,376

4,091,744
407,843
411,274
(7,300,000)
(2,389,139)

(785,537)

(12,164,429)

715,373

(6,573,098)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
State Appropriations
Private Gifts
Pell Grants
Federal CARES Act
Investment Income
Net Gain on Investments
Support to Delaware State University
Amortization of Service Concession Arrangement
Interest Expense
Net Nonoperating Revenue
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUE
(EXPENSES), GAINS AND (LOSSES)
OTHER REVENUE
Capital Appropriations - State
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets and Other
Total Other Revenue

13,000,000
105,891
13,105,891

13,400,000
(2,049,777)
11,350,223

-

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

12,320,354

(814,206)

715,373

(108,009,034)

(107,194,828)

14,161,214

(95,688,680)

$ (108,009,034)

NET POSITION
Net Position, Beginning of Year
End of Year

$

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

14,876,587

(6,573,098)
20,734,312
$

14,161,214

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of Tuition and Fees
Receipts from Grants and Contracts
Payments to Vendors
Payments for Utilities
Payments to Employees
Payments for Benefits
Receipts from Auxiliary Services
Sales and Service of Educational Departments
Other Receipts
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

$

28,140,284
16,928,532
(36,358,545)
(4,799,504)
(56,456,437)
(24,680,509)
20,370,288
195,959
2,807,058
(53,852,874)

2019
$ 24,355,590
19,874,189
(37,622,598)
(3,153,512)
(55,873,226)
(29,029,827)
26,151,786
326,002
5,461,931
(49,509,665)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Appropriations
Pell Grants Receipts
CARES Act Receipts
Support from Delaware State University Foundation
Other Payment/Expense
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

43,434,322
10,298,803
16,889,383
70,622,508

36,123,603
10,471,361
7,300,000
(312,954)
53,582,010

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Capital Appropriations
Net Proceeds from Notes Payable
Net Proceeds Refunding Bond
Payment for Refunding Bond
Gain on Disposal of Building
(Loss) Gain on Refunding
Change in Assets Held in Trust
Change in Assets Held in Agency
Purchases of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Capital Debt
Interest Paid on Capital Debt
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities

13,000,000
9,690,000
(9,475,000)
105,881
(71,137)
129,294
(659,698)
(9,360,627)
(4,291,205)
(4,639,742)
(5,572,234)

15,889,818
2,000,000
34,754
(139,338)
717,557
(8,694,882)
(3,907,012)
(4,504,780)
1,396,117

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment (Loss) Income
Purchase of Investments
Sale of Investment
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

(9,736)
(2,747,413)
2,267,726
(489,423)

132,970
(4,923,138)
4,879,638
89,470

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10,707,977

5,557,932

9,900,628

4,342,696

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

$ 20,608,605

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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$

9,900,628

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense on Student Receivables
Changes in Noncash Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Student Receivables Before Bad Debts
Other Receivables and Other Assets
Due (to) from Affiliate
Government Grants
Other Assets Noncurrent
Accounts Payable
Net Pension Related Activity
Net OPEB Related Activity
Unearned Revenue
Deferred Outflows/Inflows Related to Grants
Deferred Tuition Revenue
Accrued Employee Compensation and Compensated Absences
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Acquisition of Capital Assets Under Service
Concession Arrangement
Acquisition of Capital Assets Under Capital Lease Arrangement

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2020

2019

$ (64,976,844)

$ (62,497,273)

9,935,313
(1,121,442)

9,548,517
2,066,228

(3,686,745)
(272,306)
(536,916)
473,678
2,981,358
4,126,535
(2,513,452)
(108,863)
(110,076)
404,924
1,551,962

(6,352,333)
767,339
176,480
234,819
3,065,271
505,749
980,009
(347,867)
(114,430)
1,924,421
533,405

$ (53,852,874)

$ (49,509,665)

$ 68,210,063

$

-

$

$

-

2,474,937

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization
The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations,
change in net position, and cash flows of Delaware State University (the University), a
federal land grant institution. The financial statements of the University include the activity of
its main campus in Dover, Delaware and its associated campuses in Wilmington and
Georgetown, Delaware.
The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards as established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These standards require the University
to evaluate potential component units for which the University is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
University is such that exclusion would cause the University’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.
Based on the application of the criteria for determining component units, a certain affiliated
organization is included within the University’s reporting entity as a discretely presented
component unit. The affiliated organization is considered to: 1) receive or hold economic
resources that are to be used for the benefit of the University, 2) receive or hold economic
resources which the University is entitled to or otherwise have the ability to access, and 3) is
significant to the financial statements of the University with which the organization is
affiliated.
Accordingly, the Delaware State University Foundation, Inc. (the Advancement Foundation)
is considered a component unit due to the significance of the financial statement amounts to
the University’s financial statements. The Advancement Foundation is organized as
nonprofit corporations under the laws of Delaware and is exempt from taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and similar state provisions.
The Advancement Foundation component unit is a nongovernmental entity that prepares
their financial statements using accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.
The University is the sole member of the Early College High School (ECHS), which is a
governmental entity that prepares its financial statements using accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the GASB. ECHS is considered a
component unit of the State of Delaware due to the significance of funding provided by the
state to ECHS. The University pays certain expenses on its behalf. As of June 30, 2020 and
2019, ECHS owes the University $-0- and $181,587, respectively, and it has been recorded as
other receivables on the statements of net position. ECHS operates in a building owned by the
University. The University does not charge ECHS for this space which has an estimated value
of $260,067 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Organization (Continued)
Additional information on the University’s discretely presented component unit and the
ECHS, including copies of the audit reports, are available by contacting the Finance and
Administration Office, Delaware State University, 1200 N. DuPont Highway, Dover,
Delaware 19901.
The University is a discretely presented component unit of the state of Delaware (the State).
The financial balances and activities included in these financial statements are, therefore,
also included in the State’s comprehensive annual financial report.
Basis of Presentation
The University’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as promulgated by the GASB. For financial reporting purposes,
the University is considered to be a special-purpose government engaged only in businesstype activities. GASB defines business-type activities as activities financed, in whole or in
part, by user charges for goods or services. Accordingly, the accompanying financial
statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as prescribed by GASB. Revenue is recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.
Newly Adopted Accounting Standards
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide
temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.
This Statement extends the effective dates of certain accounting and financial reporting
provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that were first effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
New Accounting Standards
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The objective of this Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This Statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The
focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the
fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate
criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit
arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The University is required to adopt Statement No.
84 for its fiscal year 2021 and is assessing if the standard will have any impact on its
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)
In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2021. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use
lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
governments’ leasing activities. The University is required to adopt Statement No. 87 for its
fiscal year 2022. and is assessing if the standard will have any impact on its financial
statements. The University has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of GASB
No. 87 may have on its financial statements.
In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred
before the End of a Construction Period, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting
period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. The University is required to adopt Statement No. 89 for its fiscal year
2022 and is assessing if the standard will have any impact on its financial statements.
In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of
financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity
interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should
be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the
definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an
investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a specialpurpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment
(including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and
funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. The University is required to
adopt Statement No. 90 for its fiscal year 2021 and is assessing if the standard will have any
impact on its financial statements.
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DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)
In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. This Statement requires
issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations, organized by
type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that
recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also
should disclose information about the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed
during the reporting period. The University is required to adopt Statement No. 91 for its fiscal
year 2023 and is assessing if the standard will have any impact on its financial statements.
In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. This statement enhances comparability in
accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature
by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. The University is required to adopt Statement No.
92 for its fiscal year 2022 and is assessing if the standard will have any impact on its
financial statements.
In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered
Rates, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to the replacement of
IBORs in hedging derivative instruments and leases. It also identifies appropriate
benchmark interest rates for hedging derivative instruments. The University is required to
adopt Statement No. 93 for its fiscal year 2022 and is assessing if the standard will have any
impact on its financial statements.
In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships (PPP) and Availability Payment Arrangements (APA), which is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. This Statement establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for PPPs and APAs for governments. The University is
required to adopt Statement No. 94 for its fiscal year 2023 and is assessing if the standard
will have any impact on its financial statements.
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022.
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscriptionbased information technology agreements. The University is required to adopt Statement
No. 96 for its fiscal year 2023 and assessing if the standard will have any impact on its
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)
In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to
(1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component
units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board
and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution
pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit
plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance
the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans)
that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. The
requirements in (1) paragraph 4 of this Statement as it applies to defined contribution
pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans and
(2) paragraph 5 of this Statement are effective immediately. The requirements in paragraphs
6–9 of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. All other
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2021. The University is required to adopt Statement No. 97 for its fiscal year 2022 and
assessing if the standard will have any impact on its financial statements.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The University defines cash and cash equivalents as those investments with an original
maturity date of three months or less at time of purchase.
Tuition Revenue and Student Receivables
The University’s tuition and fees revenue is reported net of any scholarship allowance. The
scholarship allowance represents monies received as tuition from outside resources such as
Title IV Federal Grant Program, restricted grants and scholarships, as well as tuition
waivers. Tuition also includes pledged revenue as security for the 2007 bonds in the
amounts of $1,565,781 and $1,482,891 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Student receivables are obligations of students resulting from course registrations. In the
normal course of business, the University extends credit to students. These students are
predominately from the Middle Atlantic region.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Tuition Revenue and Student Receivables (Continued)
Realization of receivables is somewhat dependent upon the collection efforts of the
University, as well as the general economic climate. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided based upon management’s judgments including such factors as previous collection
history and characteristics of the respective receivables. Tuition receivables are due before
the end of the semester for which they were incurred. Amounts that remain uncollected
three months after the end of the semester are considered delinquent and are usually
referred to the collection manager. Student receivables are recorded net of estimated
uncollectible amounts. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for uncollectible
accounts in student receivables was $8,082,074 and $9,203,516, respectively. Third-party
receivables included in net student receivables as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $951,401
and $972,258, respectively. Third-party allowances for doubtful accounts included in
net student receivables was $743,947 and $393,442 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
Federal Financial Assistance Programs
The University participates in certain federally funded student financial aid programs
including: Federal Direct Loan Program, Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity
Grants, Federal Work-Study, and SMART Grants. The University is also the recipient of
awards for research and development activities, as well as other federal awards to support
University activities.
Assets Held in Trust
Assets held in trust are under the control of outside bond trustees and represent reserves
for payment of principal and interest due on the bonds, the maintenance of debt service
reserve funds, and construction funds.
Investments
Investments in debt and equity securities are recorded at fair value based upon quoted
market prices. All gains and losses arising from sales or other disposition of investments are
recorded on a specific identification basis calculated as of the trade date.
Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined by the University as a purchase with a value of greater than
$5,000 and a useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are stated at cost or, if
received by gift, at estimated acquisition value on the date of contribution. Capital assets,
with the exception of land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of 50 years for buildings and building improvements, 25 years for land improvements
and infrastructure, seven years for equipment and vehicles, five years for software, and five
years for library books. The cost of ordinary maintenance and repairs that do not materially
extend the useful life of assets are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Unearned Revenue
The University reports unearned revenue on its statements of net position. Unearned
revenue primarily consists of funds that are received prior to the service being provided by
the University. As such, it is the University’s policy to recognize these balances over the
course of the period that the service is rendered.
Pensions
Certain employees of the University are members of the Delaware State Employees’
Pension Plan which is part of the Delaware Public Employees’ Retirement System. The
Retirement Pension System is considered a cost sharing multiemployer plan.
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the plan, and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement
system. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for element, deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred outflows of resources are used for timing
differences for both pension and OPEB plans based on actuarial calculations and for the
deferred loss on bond refunding. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows of resources are used for service
concession arrangements, grants and pension and OPEB differences.
Compensated Absences
It is the University’s policy to allow employees to carry over unused annual leave up to a
maximum of 32 days. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the liability for unused compensated
absences was $3,257,102 and $2,658,640, respectively.
It is the University’s policy, upon retirement, to pay out sick leave balances that have been
accrued up to a maximum of 60 days and for the collective bargaining unit members (1007,
1267, and 2888) to pay out yearly balances that exceed 60 days at the rate of one half day
for every day accrued. Therefore, the University has recorded a liability of $2,260,094 and
$2,820,445, related to earned, unused sick leave as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Service Concession Arrangement
The University has a service concession arrangement related to a student housing facility.
The facility is capitalized, and revenues are deferred and accreted over the life of the
contract.
Net Position
Net position is classified as restricted, unrestricted, or net investment in capital assets.
Restricted net position is those assets for which there are externally imposed constraints,
which have not yet been met. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the University’s policy to use restricted resources first and the unrestricted
resources as they are needed. The net investment in capital assets represents the net book
value of capital assets less the outstanding portion of the related debt financing of capital
assets.
Operating and Nonoperating Components
Operating revenue of the University are generally associated with those activities that
directly relate to the core activities of instruction and research and consist of tuition and
fees, grants and contracts, sales and services of educational activities, and auxiliary
enterprise revenue. Transactions related to capital and financing activities, noncapital
financing activities, investing activities, and State appropriations are reported as
components of nonoperating activities. Restricted and unrestricted resources are spent and
tracked by the departments of the University within the guidelines of donor restrictions.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures about
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the statements of net position and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.
Income Taxes
The University is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and
is recognized as such by the IRS. The provisions included in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America provide consistent guidance for the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial statements and prescribe a
threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. The University performed an evaluation of uncertain tax positions as of
June 30, 2020, and determined that there were no matters that would require recognition in
the financial statements or which may have any effect on its tax-exempt status.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2019 amounts to conform with the 2020
presentation.
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The University has established a policy “Statement of Investment Objectives and Guidelines
for Investment Managers” as amended on February 29, 2016. The primary objective of the
guidelines is the safety of principal by minimizing credit risk and interest rate risk. According
to University policy, risk tolerance can be characterized as medium to medium low.
University policy specifies the types of investments the managers can make, the maximum
percentage of assets that may be invested in particular instruments, the minimum credit
quality of these investments, and the maximum length of time the assets can be invested.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
University would not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments, or collateral
securities that were in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed
to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured or not registered in the name of the University
and are held at either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but
not in the University’s name. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, all cash and investment
accounts were held in the name of the University.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is assumed to arise when the amount of investments that the
University has with one issuer exceeds 5% or more of the total value of the University’s
investments. The University does have a formal policy for concentration of credit risk.
According to this policy, “holdings in any one company may generally not exceed 5% of the
market value of each equity portfolio.” In addition, the policy also spells out that “portfolios
should be well diversified in order to mitigate risk of loss.” As of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
there was no portion of the University portfolio, excluding U.S. government guaranteed
obligations, which exceed 5% of the portfolio.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the University will lose money because of the default of the
security issuer or investment counterparty. University policy has not clearly defined ratings
for each type of investments; however, it states that “Investments should focus on high
quality companies with an established and profitable operating record, be in sound financial
condition, and have competent management.” As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, there was no
portion of the University portfolio that was invested in below investment grade securities.
The University’s $1,859,879 and $3,890,750 in federal agency investments were rated Aaa
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, using the Moody’s rating scale.
The University’s $5,185,584 and $4,822,218 in fixed income investments were not rated as
of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale or any
other major rating agency’s system.

(32)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair market
value of an investment. The University policy does not specifically address interest rate risk.
However, it is the University’s intent to hold securities to maturity in order to mitigate interest
rate risk.
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, cash on hand for petty cash and change fund was $22,073
and $18,580, respectively and carrying amounts of the University’s deposits were
$7,815,508 and ($927,392), respectively, bank balances of the University’s deposits were
$9,758,352 and $2,401,170, respectively. The difference is primarily caused by items in
transit. Of the bank balances, $250,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, were covered by
federal government depository insurance, with the remaining balance uninsured and
uncollateralized. The University has a contractual agreement with MT&T Bank for funds to
be transferred daily from its operating accounts, included in cash on the statement of net
position, in a repurchase/sweep agreement to cover checks as presented.
Additional $12,771,024, and $9,882,018 of funds available from the state treasurer at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are included on the statements of net position. The
total amount on deposit with the state treasurer includes amounts restricted for
nonoperating uses of $10,677,766 and $9,131,819 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Personnel of the State Treasurer’s Office in Dover, Delaware control these
funds and any investment decisions are made by the State Treasurer’s Office. The
deposits held by the state of Delaware investment pool, an internal investment pool, are
specifically identified for the University, but the credit risk cannot be categorized for these
deposits. Credit risk for such deposits depends on the investment decisions made by the
State Treasurer’s Office and the risk of loss resides with the State.
The University’s investments totaled $21,389,511 and $20,613,373 as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively. These investments were stated at quoted market value and are owned
by the University.
The University categorizes its fair value measurements when the fair value hierarchy
established by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are
other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
University’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments were as follows as of June 30, 2020
and 2019:
June 30, 2020
Federal Agencies

Fair Value
$

Level

1,859,879

2

Other Investments
Money Market
Equities
Total

837,089
2,692,097
10,814,862
16,203,927

1
1
1

Investments in Fixed Income
Mutual Funds Measured
at Net Asset Value
Total Investments

5,185,584
21,389,511

N/A

Cash on Hand
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Total Cash
Total Cash and Investments
Reconciliation to Statement
of Net Position:
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Total Cash and Investments

7,837,581
12,771,024
20,608,605
$ 41,998,116

$

7,837,581
392,078
12,771,024
16,837,539
4,159,894

$ 41,998,116
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Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than 1
1 to 5
5 to 10
$ 949,972

$

909,907

$

-
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
June 30, 2019
Federal Agencies

Fair Value
$

3,890,750

2

Other Investments
Money Market
Equities
Total

816,599
608,615
10,475,191
15,791,155

1
1
1

Investments in Fixed Income
Mutual Funds Measured
at Net Asset Value
Total Investments

4,822,218
20,613,373

N/A

Cash on Hand
Funds Available from
State Treasurer
Total Cash
Total Cash and Investments
Reconciliation to Statement
of Net Position:
Cash
Expendable Investments
Funds Available from State
Treasurer
Investments
Assets Held in Trust
Total Cash and Investments

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than 1
1 to 5
5 to 10

Level

$ 598,245

18,580
9,882,048
9,900,628
$ 30,514,001

$

18,580
210,177
9,882,048
16,114,008
4,289,188

$ 30,514,001

Assets Held in Trust
As of June 30, 2020, assets held in trust consisted of:
Debt Service Reserve Fund

$

4,159,894

$

4,289,188

As of June 30, 2019, assets held in trust consisted of:
Debt Service Reserve Fund
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$ 3,292,505

$

-
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Delaware State University Foundation
The Delaware State University Foundation’s investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
consisted of the following:

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Amortized
Cost
$
18,383
2,644,306
3,198,552
1,937,822
445,380
100,000
$ 8,344,443

2020
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses
$
$
95,767
691,351
41,236
6,761
18,023
$ 835,115
$
18,023

Fair
Value
$
18,383
2,740,073
3,889,903
1,979,058
452,141
81,977
$ 9,161,535

2019

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Amortized
Cost
$
42,252
2,523,399
3,155,764
1,747,780
477,535
100,000
$ 8,046,730

Gross
Unrealized
Gains
$
58,547
642,694
185,830
219
$ 887,290

Gross
Unrealized
Losses
$
2,679
15,897
$
18,576

Fair
Value
$
42,252
2,579,267
3,798,458
1,933,610
477,754
84,103
$ 8,915,444

The following is a description of the valuation methodology used for assets measured at fair
value as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:
Money Market Fund: Valued at the closing price of the underlying market value of
investments.
Fixed Income Fund, U.S. Equity, Non-U.S. Equity, Mutual Funds: Valued at the closing
price reported on the active market by which the fund is traded.
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.: Valued based on management estimate using
unobservable data.
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the
Foundation believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the
reporting date.

(36)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 2

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Delaware State University Foundation (Continued)
The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation’s assets
at fair value as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:
2020
Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Level 1
$
18,383
2,740,073
3,889,903
1,979,058
452,141
$ 9,079,558

Money Market Funds
Fixed Income Funds
U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Equity
Mutual Fund
Leading Edge Ventures I, L.P.
Total

Level 1
$
42,252
2,579,267
3,798,458
1,933,610
477,754
$ 8,831,341

Level 2
$

Level 3
-

$

$

$

Fair Value
18,383
2,740,073
3,889,903
1,979,058
452,141
81,977
$ 9,161,535

81,977
81,977

$

2019

NOTE 3

Level 2
$

Level 3
-

$

$

$

Fair Value
$
42,252
2,579,267
3,798,458
1,933,610
477,754
84,103
$ 8,915,444

84,103
84,103

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS
The University’s other receivables and other assets as of June 30 consisted of the following:
Early College High School
Childcare Lab
Other Miscellaneous
Total Other Receivables

$

$

2020
509,919
151,105
16,773
677,797

$

$

2019
181,587
170,316
53,588
405,491

Pledge Receivables – Delaware State University Foundation, Inc.:
Amounts Due in Less than One Year
Amounts Due in Two to Five Years
Total
Less: Present Value Discount of 2.0%
Allowance for Uncollectable Receivable
Pledges Receivable, Net

$

$
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2020
11,651
51,112
62,763
168
32,908
29,687

$

$

2019
187,901
51,112
239,013
7,737
18,277
212,999
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OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Other Assets Noncurrent Asset
The Foundation invested $1,500,000, for a one-third membership interest in the Friends of
the Capitol Theater, Inc., a nonstock corporation, which was established to acquire and
maintain the Schwartz Center for the Arts (the Theater) in 2007
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Theater transferred 50% ownership of the
building, and 50% interest in the operating account of the Friends of the Capitol Theater to
the Foundation. The Foundation has treated the value of the investment in the Schwartz
Theater as of June 30, 2018, of $797,674, as the basis of its new investment in the
Schwartz building and operating cash. The operating cash account was moved to restricted
cash as these funds are only available for the repairs and maintenance associated with the
Schwartz Theater.
The value of the investment will be adjusted by the annual depreciation and operating
income or loss of the Theater. As there was no income in 2020 or 2019, the investment was
reduced by depreciation of $20,567 for 2020 and 2019. The value of the investment in the
Schwartz Theater was $756,539 as of June 30, 2020 and $777,106 as of June 30, 2019.
The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the Foundation’s interest in the Theater
for the years ended June 30:
Balance - Beginning
Decline in Net Book Value
Balance - Ending

$
$
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2020
777,106
(20,567)
756,539

$
$

2019
797,674
(20,568)
777,106
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PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Capital asset activity of the University for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:
Balance
June 30, 2019
Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Service Concession Arrangement
Construction in Progress
Total Assets Not Being Depreciated

$

Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Assets Being Depreciated

Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Assets Being Depreciated
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Net

$

$

68,210,063
645,563
68,855,626

-

Balance
June 30, 2020
$

(4,323,445)
(4,323,445)

7,662,297
68,210,063
1,137,686
77,010,046

1,715,426
2,601,387
4,316,813

25,869,826
301,115,808
60,246,608
6,617,926
393,850,168

287,076
3,953,740
4,876,816
9,117,632

392,893,588

77,973,258

(6,632)

470,860,214

13,807,297
99,095,920
44,821,908
6,617,926
164,343,051

1,575,303
5,521,895
2,838,114
9,935,312

(6,632)
(6,632)

15,382,600
104,617,815
47,653,390
6,617,926
174,271,731

$ 228,550,537

$ 68,037,946

$

-

$ 296,588,483

Balance
June 30, 2018

Additions
and Transfers

Retirements
and Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2019

$

$

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements and
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Library Books
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Assets Not Being Depreciated

Retirements
and Transfers

25,582,750
295,446,642
52,768,405
6,617,926
380,415,723

Total

Total Capital Assets, Net

7,662,297
4,815,568
12,477,865

Additions
and Transfers

$

7,662,297
516,854
8,179,151

4,776,697
4,776,697

477,983
477,983

$

7,662,297
4,815,568
12,477,865

23,937,634
298,871,105
51,397,475
6,617,926
380,824,140

1,645,116
854,076
1,418,993
3,918,185

4,278,539
48,063
4,326,602

25,582,750
295,446,642
52,768,405
6,617,926
380,415,723

389,003,291

8,694,882

4,804,585

392,893,588

12,221,403
96,235,597
42,474,416
6,617,926
157,549,342

1,585,894
5,567,068
2,395,555
9,548,517

2,706,745
48,063
2,754,808

13,807,297
99,095,920
44,821,908
6,617,926
164,343,051

2,049,777

$ 228,550,537

$ 231,453,949
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(853,635)
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Details of the University’s noncurrent liabilities as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:
2020

Compensated Absences
Notes Payable
Capital Lease Obligation
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Revenue Bond Premium
Revenue Bonds
Total

June 30,
2019
$
5,479,085
2,462,623
31,626,962
195,965,955
7,884,748
101,625,000
$ 345,044,373

Compensated Absences
Notes Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Revenue Bond Premium
Revenue Bonds
Total

June 30,
2018
$
5,269,778
808,120
36,106,491
198,679,926
8,201,263
104,870,000
$ 353,935,578

Additions
$
38,111
2,474,937
5,907,226
9,690,000
$ 18,110,274

Reductions
$

$

339,404
20,383
8,959,861
981,418
12,425,000
22,726,066

June 30,
2020
$
5,517,196
2,123,219
2,454,554
37,534,188
187,006,094
6,903,330
98,890,000
$ 340,428,581

$

$

Current
Portion
669,124
347,979
4,428
3,680,000
4,701,531

2019
Additions
$
209,307
2,000,000
$
2,209,307

Reductions
$

$

345,497
4,479,529
2,713,971
316,515
3,245,000
11,100,512

June 30,
2019
$
5,479,085
2,462,623
31,626,962
195,965,955
7,884,748
101,625,000
$ 345,044,373

$

$

Current
Portion
772,989
347,979
3,435,000
4,555,968

Notes Payable
On December 15, 2005, the University entered into an agreement with the Delaware River
and Bay Authority (DRBA) to demolish the existing terminal building located at the Cheswold
Airport and construct a new building containing approximately 14,375 rentable square feet of
space and to submit the building and land together with any improvements to the Delaware
Air Park Condominium. The University agreed to pay the DRBA the Special Assessment in
consideration for the creation of the DSU Unit and the conveyance of the DSU Unit to the
University in accordance with the terms of the Project Development Agreement. In
connection with this agreement, the University entered into a 20-year mortgage in the
amount of $1,011,545. Principal is payable in 240 monthly installments of $5,509 which
began on January 1, 2007. The interest rate for the first 60 payments is 1.5%, 3% for
payments 61 – 120, and 5.32% for all remaining payments.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
On May 28, 2015, the University entered into an agreement with The Delaware Economic
Development Authority (DEDA), also a discretely presented component unit of the state of
Delaware, for funding to purchase new equipment for phase one of the Optical Science
Center for Applied Research (OSCAR) facility located on the Dover Campus, to conduct
advanced optical research. In connection with this agreement, the University agreed to pay
a 12-year note in the amount of $3,000,000. There was no interest on the loan. DEDA made
a disbursement in the amount of $1,000,000 on June 29, 2015. The disbursement in the
amount of $1,000,000 due on June 30, 2016, has not been received. Another payment of
$1,000,000 was scheduled on June 30, 2019. The DEDA disbursed the remaining loan
amount of $2,000,000 on August 9, 2018. On July 1, 2015, the first principal payment of
$100,000 was made. On July 1, 2016, a principal payment of $200,000 was made. On
July 1, 2017, and on the first day of the next 84 months (seven years), a principal payment
of $300,000 will be made annually. On July 1, 2025, payment of $200,000 will be made. On
July 1, 2026, a final principal payment of $100,000 will be made.
Following is a summary of remaining payment schedule for Delaware River and Bay
Authority and Delaware Economic Development Authority notes payable as of June 30, 2020:
Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2024 - 2026
Totals

$

$

Principal
347,979
353,353
356,261
359,328
362,563
343,735
2,123,219

$

$

Interest
15,517
12,759
9,850
6,783
3,549
507
48,965

$

$

Total
363,496
366,112
366,111
366,111
366,112
344,242
2,172,184

Revenue Bonds
Series 2011 Energy Efficiency Bonds
The University entered into a Guaranteed Energy Savings Agreement with Johnson
Controls, Inc. in the amount of $11,265,000. In connection with this agreement and to
fund energy efficiency projects, energy efficiency revenue bonds were issued through
the State of Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. on August 1, 2011. The bonds are
due September 15, 2032, and are limited obligations of the University, payable only from
amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for payment of the Installment
Payments pursuant to the Energy Performance Contracting Act. The 2011 bonds are
equally and ratably secured by the trust estate, and failure of the State to appropriate
each year sufficient available funds will cause insufficient funds to be deposited into the
bond fund to pay all principal and interest on the bonds when due.
Johnson Controls, Inc. guaranteed that the savings achieved will be sufficient to cover
the financing costs associated with the bond, upon completion of the energy upgrades to
various buildings and systems throughout the University. In the event that the savings
are not realized, Johnson Controls, Inc. will be responsible for the amount of that
deficiency. As of June 30, 2020, the 2011 bonds were refunded in the amount of
$9,475,000, see Series 2020 Energy Efficiency Refunding Bonds.
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Series 2012 Bonds
On March 1, 2012, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$32,145,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds are due October 1, 2036 and are secured by a pledge of certain unappropriated
revenue of the University. The 2012 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the
Indenture, secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and outstanding
under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness as provided in the Indenture and
in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2012 Bonds were used to finance: (1) the
refunding of certain maturities of The Delaware Economic Development Authority
Revenue Refunding Bonds (Delaware State University Project) Series 1999; (2) the
purchase of the University Village, a four building, 628-bed student housing facility and
dining hall located on the campus of the University, the construction of which was
financed by the Kent County, Delaware Variable Rate Demand Student Housing
Revenue Bonds (Delaware State University Student Housing Foundation Project) Series
2004B; (3) the funding of any required reserve funds relating to the 2012 Bonds; and
(4) the costs of issuance and any credit enhancement of the 2012 Bonds. As of June 30,
2020, $24,502,101 including $1,302,101 of unamortized bond premium remained
outstanding on the 2012 revenue bonds.
Series 2014 Bonds
On December 11, 2014, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$29,225,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds are due October 1, 2039 and are secured by unappropriated gross revenue of the
University. The 2014 bonds were issued as “Additional Bonds” under the Indenture,
secured equally and ratable with all other Bonds issued and outstanding under the
Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness outstanding as provided in the Indenture and
in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of the 2014 bonds, together with other available
funds, were used to finance: (1) purchase of the University Courtyard, a 416-bed student
housing facility located on campus from the Delaware State University Housing
Foundation; (2) construction, equipping, and furnishing of an optical science center for
applied research; (3) acquisition and capital improvement of the former Sheraton Hotel
and Convention Center, now known as the Living and Learning Commons, a 264-bed
student housing facility and space used by Delaware State University Early College High
School. As of June 30, 2020, $28,775,330 including $3,085,330 of unamortized bond
premium remained outstanding on the 2014 revenue bonds.

(42)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Series 2017 Bonds
On April 3, 2017, the University issued revenue-refunding bonds in the amount of
$42,680,000 (par value) through the Delaware Economic Development Authority. The
bonds mature between April 3, 2017 and October 1, 2039 and are secured by
unappropriated gross revenue of the University. The 2017 bonds were issued as
“Additional Bonds” under the indenture, secured equally and eatable with all other
Bonds issued and outstanding under the Indenture and any Alternative Indebtedness
outstanding as provided in the indenture and in the Loan Agreement. The proceeds of
the 2017 bonds, together with other available funds, were used to refund the 2007
revenue series bonds. Series 2017 revenue bonds issued as refunding bonds, the
proceeds of which were used to refund the series 2007 for a net present value
savings of $3.5 million, or 7.37% of the principal refunded. The bonds bear coupons
between 3.0% and 5.0% and yield between 1.17% and 3.99%. The 2007 bonds were
secured for the construction of a new student union, a swimming pool, and a student
wellness/recreation center. As of June 30, 2020, $42,825,899 including $2,515,899 of
unamortized bond premium remained outstanding on the 2017 revenue bonds.
Series 2020 Energy Efficiency Refunding Bonds
Energy efficiency refunding revenue bonds in the amount of $9,690,000 were issued
through the State of Delaware Sustainable Energy Utility, Inc. on April 30, 2020. The
bonds are due September 15, 2034, and are limited obligations of the University,
payable only from amounts appropriated by the State that are eligible for payment of the
Installment Payments pursuant to the Energy Performance Contracting Act. The 2020
bonds are equally and ratably secured by the trust estate, and failure of the State to
appropriate each year sufficient available funds will cause insufficient funds to be
deposited into the bond fund to pay all principal and interest on the bonds when due.
The proceeds of the 2020 bonds were used to refinance and defease, for interest rate
savings, the Energy Efficiency Bonds, Series 2011 and pay costs of issuance. The
refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $105,891. This difference, reported in the accompanying
statement of net position as a deferred outflow of resources, will be amortized to interest
expense through the year 2032. The debt restructure provides a net economic gain
(difference between the present value of the old and new debt service payments) of
$778,557. Total gross debt service over the next 12 years will decrease by $918,418. As
of June 30, 2020, $9,690,000 remained outstanding on the 2020 energy efficiency
bonds.

(43)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Remaining Maturities
Remaining maturities and interest due relating to the University’s revenue bonds as of
June 30, 2020 was as follows:
Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036 - 2040
2041 - 2045
Total
Plus Unamortized Bond
Premiums and Discount
Total

NOTE 6

$

Principal
Amount
3,680,000
3,875,000
4,080,000
4,245,000
4,400,000
24,705,000
28,210,000
21,015,000
4,680,000
98,890,000

$

$

Interest
Amount
4,078,751
3,960,116
3,795,307
3,628,307
3,458,918
14,479,520
8,936,589
3,240,975
608,000
46,186,483

Total
7,758,751
7,835,116
7,875,307
7,873,307
7,858,918
39,184,520
37,146,589
24,255,975
5,288,000
$ 145,076,483

$

6,903,330
$ 105,793,330

PENSION PLAN
The State Employees’ Pension Plan (the Plan) is a cost sharing multiemployer defined
benefit plan established in the Delaware Code. Separately issued financial statement for the
Delaware Public Employees Retirement Plan (DPERP) are available at pension office at
McArdle Building, Suite 1, 860 Silver Lake Boulevard, Dover, Delaware 19904.
Plan Description and Eligibility
The Plan covers virtually all full time or regular part-time employees of the State, including
employees of other affiliated entities. There are two tiers within this plan: 1) employees hired
prior to January 1, 2012 (Pre-2012) and 2) employees hired on or after January 1, 2012
(Post-2011).
Service Benefits
Final average monthly compensation (employees hired post-2011 may not include overtime
in its compensation) multiplied by years of credited service prior to January 1, 1997, plus
final average monthly compensation multiplies by 1.85% and multiplied by years of credited
services after December 31, 1996, subject to minimum limitations. For this Plan, final
average monthly compensation is monthly average of the highest three periods of
12 consecutive months of compensation.
Vesting
Pre-2012 date of hire: five years of credited service. Post-2011 date of hire: 10 years of
credited service.
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Retirement
Pre-2012 date of hire: Age 62 with five years of credited service; age 60 with 15 years of
credited service; or after 30 years of credited service at any age. Post-2011 date of hire: age
65 with at least 10 years of credited service; age 60 with 20 years of credited service; and
30 years of credited service at any age.
Disability Benefits
Pre-2012 date of hire: same as service benefits. Employee must have five years of credited
service. In lieu of disability pension benefits, over 90% of the members of this plan opted
into a Disability Insurance Program offered by the State effective January 1, 2006.
Post-2011 date of hire: in the Disability Insurance Program.
Survivor Benefits
If employee is receiving a pension, the eligible survivor receives 50% of pension (or 75%
with 3% reduction of benefit); if employee is active with at least five years of credited
service, eligible survivor receives 75% of the benefit the employee would have received at
age 62.
Burial Benefit
$7,000 per member.
Contributions
Employer-determined by Board of Pension Trustees. Employer contributions were 11.83%
and 10.42% of earnings for fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Pre-2012 date of hire member – 3% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Post-2011 date of hire member – 5% of earnings in excess of $6,000.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University reported a liability of $37,534,188
$31,626,962, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and update procedures were used to roll forward
the total pension liability to June 30, 2018 and a roll forward methodology was again used to
determine the total pension liability for 2019. The University’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the University’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating government units
actuarially determined. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, the University’s
proportion was 2.4101% and 2.4489%, which was .0388% and .0141% lower from 2.4489%
and 2.463%, its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University recognized a pension expense
of $10,816,756 and $6,683,422, respectively. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the
following sources:
2020

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Difference Between Actual and
Expected Experience
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
3,896,358
-

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

829,608

426,018

-

3,156,974

275,502

6,165,787
$ 13,645,137

1,105,110

$

2019

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Difference Between Actual and
Expected Experience
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total
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Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
5,506,624
123,265

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

644,407

-

1,340,650

1,652,872

456,453

5,918,085
$ 13,200,846

2,441,510

$
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)
Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $6,165,787, related to the net pension
liability resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total

Amortization
$
3,622,495
(18,503)
947,197
1,532,638
290,413
$
6,374,240

Actuarial Assumptions
The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions as of June 30:
Investment Rate of Return/Discount rate (1)
Projected Salary Increases
Ad Hoc Cost of Living Adjustments

2019
7.00%
2.5% + Merit
0.00%

2018
7.00%
2.5% + Merit
0.00%

(1) Inflation is included at 2.5%

The total pension liabilities are measured based on assumptions pertaining to the interest
rates, inflation rates, and employee demographic behavior in future years. It is likely that
future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual
experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher than
expected or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates the larger the impact
on future financial statements.
Projected benefit payments do not include the effects of projected ad hoc cost-of-living
adjustments (as hoc COLAs) as they are not substantively automatic. The primary
considerations relevant to making this determination include the historic pattern of granting
the changes and the consistency in the amounts of the changes.
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Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighing the expected future real rates of return by an asset allocation percentage, and by
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major
asset class included in the Plan’s current and expected asset allocation as of June 30, 2019
and 2018 are summarized in the following tables:
2019

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Alternative Investments
Cash and Equivalents

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.7%
5.7%
2.0%
7.8%
0.0%

Asset
Allocation
29.5%
13.5%
27.1%
22.4%
7.5%

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.7%
5.7%
2.0%
7.8%
0.0%

Asset
Allocation
30.7%
13.9%
23.3%
24.4%
7.7%

2018

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Alternative Investments
Cash and Equivalents

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made at rates determined by the Board of Pension Trustees, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of the projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Information Included in the DPERS Financial Statements
Actuarial assumptions, long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments,
discount rate, and pension plan fiduciary net position are available in the financial
statements of DPERS as noted above.
Sensitivity of the University’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate
The University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2020 and
2019 for $37,534,188 and $31,626,962, respectively, was calculated using the discount rate
of 7.0%. Additionally, the University’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (6.0%) is $67,801,000 and $61,375,000 or one percentage point
higher (8.0%) is $12,119,000 and $6,649,000.

NOTE 7

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Following is the University’s other postemployment benefits liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits and
other postemployment benefits expense and expenditures for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019:
2020
$ 187,006,094
15,554,706
48,005,501
3,936,738
6,450,367

Net OPEB Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB Expense
Contributions

2019
$ 195,965,955
5,897,391
31,901,777
6,877,398
5,897,391

Plan Description and Eligibility
The State of Delaware’s Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust Fund is a cost sharing
multiemployer defined-benefit plan. The plan is administered by the Delaware Public
Employee’s Retirement System (DPERS). The State of Delaware (the State) is responsible
for the policy and management of the OPEB benefits provided to retirees. The plan’s assets
may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of the plan in accordance with
the terms of the plan. Additional financial information and actuarial information with respect
to the plan may be found in the State of Delaware Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
available online at https://accounting.delaware.gov.
The plan provides retirement medical coverage to pensioners and their eligible dependents
covered under the following pension plans: State Employees’, New State Police, Judiciary,
and Closed State Police Pension Plans. This includes the employees of the State as well as
employees of the State’s component units and affiliated agencies which are part of the State
Employees’ pension plan. Those employers are Delaware State University, Delaware State
Housing Authority, Delaware Charter Schools, University of Delaware, Delaware Solid
Waste Authority, and the Delaware State Education Association. The participant’s cost of
the plan benefits is variable based on years of service within those pension plan categories.
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Plan Description and Eligibility (Continued)
Substantially all State employees become eligible for postretirement benefits if they reach
retirement age while working for the State. The costs of providing these benefits are shared
between the State and the retired employee. The plan provisions are as follows:
Eligibility:
Employees:
 Early Retirement – age 55 with 15 years of service or any age with 25 years of
service.
 Normal Retirement (hired before January 1, 2012) – age 62 with five years of
service or age 60 with 15 years of service or any age with 30 years of service.
 Normal Retirement (hired on or after January 1, 2012) – age 65 with 10 years of
service, or age 60 with 20 years of service or any age with 30 years of service.
Benefits
The plan provides health insurance options through several providers.
Spouse and Survivor Coverage
Both are available under any of the plan options with similar retiree contributions. Surviving
spouses are eligible for coverage after the retiree’s death.
Retiree Contributions
If hired prior to July 1, 1991, no contributions are required. If hired on or after July 1, 1991
(except disability pension), contributions depend on years of service, as shown on the table
below:
Between July 1, 1991 and December 31, 2006
Percent of Premium
Years of Service
Paid by State
Less than 10
0%
10 - 14
50%
15 - 19
75%
20 or more
100%

After January 1, 2017
Percent of Premium
Years of Service
Paid by State
Less than 15
0%
15 - 17.5
50%
17.5 - 19
75%
20 or more
100%

Funding Policy
The State funds the OPEB for current retirees on a pay-as-you-go basis along with funding
for future benefits at a rate that is approved in the annual budget, but not actuarially
determined. Additional funding has also been provided on an ad hoc basis. By State Statute
Chapter 52, Title 29 of the Delaware Code, contribution requirements of plan members and
the government are established and may be amended by the State Legislature. Funds are
recorded in the OPEB Trust for the payment of retiree healthcare claims, administrative and
investment expenses. Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. State
appropriations, other employer contributions, and retiree contributions for healthcare are
recorded in the OPEB Trust. The funds available are invested under the management of the
DPERS Board of Pension Trustees, which acts as the board of trustees for the OPEB Trust
and is responsible for the financial management of the OPEB Trust.
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Contributions
The contribution rates for the employer and retiree are established annually by the
budgeting process of the State. Those rates include an employer contribution based on
projected pay-as-you go financing requirements as a percent of covered payroll, with an
additional amount to prefund benefits, which is not actuarially determined.
Retiree contribution rates are affected by the retiree date of hire, with eligible retirees hired
after June 30, 1991 paying a proportionately higher rate if their years of service total less
than 20.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
2019
3.50%
3.25% + Merit
6.60%

Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

2018
3.87%
3.25% + Merit
6.80%

Mortality rates are based on the sex-distinct employee, healthy annuitant, and disabled
annuitant mortality tables from the RP-2014 Total Dataset Employee Mortality Table,
including adjustment factors. Future mortality improvements are reflected by applying a
custom projection scale on a generational basis to adjusted base tables from the base year.
The total OPEB liabilities are measured based on assumptions pertaining to the interest
rates, inflation rates, healthcare costs, and employee demographic behavior in future years.
The assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
conducted in 2016. It is likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these
assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the
emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience
deviates the larger the impact on future financial statements.
The long-term expected rate of return on the OPEB Trust plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019
and 2018 are summarized in the following tables:
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Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
2019

Target
Allocation
34.0 %
12.5
25.3
22.6
5.6
100.0 %

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Alternative Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.70%
5.70%
2.00%
7.80%
0.0%

2018

Target
Allocation
38.7 %
19.0
39.3
3.0
100.0 %

Asset Class
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Fixed Income
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Long-Term
Expected
Real Rate
of Return
5.70%
5.70%
2.00%
0.0%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively, was 3.87% and 3.58% at the beginning of the current
measurement period and 3.50% and 3.87% at the end, based on the Bond Buyer GO 20
Bond Municipal Bond Index, an index satisfying the GASB requirement of an index rate for
20-year, tax-exempt, general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be continuing to follow the pay as you go contribution
policy.
Sensitivity of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following table represents the net OPEB liability of the University for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019 as well as what the University’s net OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage
point higher than the current discount rate:

Collective Net OPEB Liability 2020

1% Decrease
(2.50%)
$ 221,740,167

Discount Rate
(3.50%)
$ 187,006,094

1% Increase
(4.50%)
$ 159,445,543

Collective Net OPEB Liability 2019

1% Decrease
(2.58%)
$ 233,197,000

Discount Rate
(3.58%)
$ 195,965,955

1% Increase
(4.58%)
$ 166,695,281
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Sensitivity of the Collective Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the University, as well as what the
University’s net OPEB liabilities would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend
rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current
healthcare cost trend rates:

Collective Net OPEB Liability 2020

1% Decrease
(5.6%)
$ 159,807,561

Healthcare
Trend Rate
(6.6%)
$ 187,006,094

1% Increase
(7.6%)
$ 219,471,923

Collective Net OPEB Liability 2019

1% Decrease
(6.0%)
$ 166,855,190

Healthcare
Trend Rate
(7.0%)
$ 195,965,955

1% Increase
(8.0%)
$ 231,420,554

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
The net OPEB liability at June 30, 2020 was measured as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to
June 30, 2019, which is the measurement date. The total OPEB liability at June 30, 2019
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 and rolled forward to June 30,
2018, which is the measurement date. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the amount recognized
as the University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability was $187,006,094 and
$195,965,955, respectively.
The allocation percentage assigned to each contributing employer is based on the
employer’s proportionate share of employer contributions to the plan for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018. Employer contributions are recognized when due.
At June 30, 2020, the University’s proportion was 2.3465% a decrease of .0404% from its
proportion of 2.3869% calculated as of June 30, 2019. At June 30, 2019, the University’s
proportion was 2.3869%, a decrease of .0197% from its proportion of 2.4066% calculated as
of June 30, 2018.
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OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University recognized an OPEB expense
of $3,936,738 and $6,877,398, respectively. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the University
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the
following sources:
2020

Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Expected and Actual Experience Differences
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
9,104,339
-

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$ 20,034,962
6,808,152
20,993,026

-

169,362

6,450,367
$ 15,554,706

$

48,005,502

2019
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Changes of Actuarial Assumptions
Changes in Proportion
Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments
Contributions Made Subsequent
to the Measurement
Total

$

$

-

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$ 26,624,716
4,784,688

-

492,373

5,897,391
5,897,391

$

31,901,777

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $6,450,367 related to the net OPEB liability
resulting from University contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
Total

Amortization
$ 11,113,804
11,113,804
11,113,804
5,559,751
$ 38,901,163
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RISK MANAGEMENT
The University participates in the statewide self-insurance programs for workers’
compensation; employee health care and accident; automobile accident; and property and
casualty claims. It is the policy of the State not to purchase commercial insurance to cover
these risks. Instead, State management believes it is more economical to manage its risk
internally and thus, covers all claim settlements and judgments out of its general fund. The
University continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risk of loss, including
general liability, educators’ legal liability, professional legal liability, supplemental workers’
compensation, aviation, and hired nonowned vehicle, cyber security breech, and the
remainder of the property and casualty liability. There have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from prior years. In the past three years of insured coverage, settled
claims have not exceeded commercial coverage. The University remits premiums to the
State to cover the costs of servicing and claims payments. The premiums are based on a
percentage of annual payroll.
More information can be obtained from the State of Delaware’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. A report can be obtained from the Department of Finance, Division of
Accounting at http://accounting.delaware.gov/cafrdefault.shtml.

NOTE 9

ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY
The Advancement Foundation’s Board chooses to spend only a portion of the investment
returns each year. Under the policy established by the Board, 4.5% of the three-year
average fair value of endowment investments at March 31 was authorized for expenditure.
The remaining amount, if any, is retained for use in future years when the amount computed
using the spending rate policy exceeds the investment return. During the year ended
June 30, 2019, the Foundation’s Board approved a $7,300,000 contribution to the University
that was in excess of the 4.5% guideline policy established by the Board. Management of
the Foundation has consulted legal counsel and considers the contribution compliant with
the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act.

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In an arrangement with the University’s component unit, the Advancement Foundation, the
University provides day-to-day management and accounting services, which also include
additional services such as: security, operational support, utilities, telecommunications, and
shared dining facilities.
NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
In the normal course of its activities, the University is a party in various legal and
administrative actions. After taking into consideration legal counsel’s evaluation of pending
actions and information relative to potential future claims based on past events, other than
the item below, the University’s management is of the opinion that the outcome thereof will
not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.
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Most grants and cost-reimbursable contracts specify the types of expenses for which the
grant or contract funds may be used. The expenses made by the University, under these
grants and contracts are subject to audit. In the opinion of management, adjustments for
unallowable costs, if any, resulting from such audits would not have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements.
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus Disease
(COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic continues to have significant
effects on global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. Specific to the
University, COVID-19 may impact various parts of its 2021 operations and financial results,
including, but not limited to, declines in enrollment, loss of auxiliary revenues, additional bad
debts, costs for increased use of technology, or potential shortages of personnel.
Management believes the University is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative
impact. However, the full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably
estimated as these events are still developing.
NOTE 12 STUDENT HOUSING FACILITY PROJECT
In fiscal year 2018, the University entered into a ground lease agreement with CHF – Dover,
LLC (CHF), an Alabama limited liability company the sole member of which is Collegiate
Housing Foundation. CHF is to finance, construct, and operate a 620-bed student housing
and dining facility. The University leased certain property to CHF, on which the new facility is
to be constructed. The lease term begins on the commencement date, May 2, 2018, and
expires on either the 50th anniversary of the commencement date, or the date of any
redemption, defeasance, or termination of the bonds CHF used to finance the facility, or the
date the University pays CHF the amount of the outstanding bonds. Upon termination of
the ground lease, all the rights and interest in the student housing and dining facility revert to
the University. CHF is to pay rent to the University in an amount equal to net available cash
flow, as defined in the ground lease agreement. CHF shall operate the student housing
facility and is responsible for maintenance of the facility at its own expense. The University
has accounted for this transaction under the requirements of GASB Statement No. 60,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements.
During 2020 the facility was completed and placed into service, the University recorded the
asset at acquisition value of $68,210,063 and a deferred inflow of resources that will be
amortized and is recognized as revenue over the term of the agreement. At June 30, 2020,
the University has a deferred inflow of $67,004,919 for the unaccreted inflow for the building.
In addition the ground lease agreement, the University has entered into management and
marketing agreements with CHF. As manager’s compensation, the University paid the initial
management fee of $223,123 commencing August 1, 2019. From and after June 30, 2020
and through the ten year term of the agreement, the University is required to pay $223,123
annually in monthly amounts equal to one-twelfth of the annual amount on the 20th day of
each month or the immediately succeeding business day if the 20th day of the month in not
a business day. The University has also entered into a marketing agreement with CHF for a
term of ten years that requires the University to pay $150,000 annually. Future minimum
required payments under the terms of the management and marketing agreements are:
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Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

Management
Agreement
$
223,123
223,123
223,123
223,123
223,123
1,115,615
$
2,231,230

Marketing
Agreement
$
150,000
150,000
150,000
150,000
150,000
750,000
$
1,500,000

$

$

Total
373,123
373,123
373,123
373,123
373,123
1,865,615
3,731,230

The University and CHF also entered into a dining facility lease. CHF is to lease the dining
facility to the University, the term of which begins when the dining facility was completed, in
August of 2019. This agreement will continue until the expiration of the ground lease
agreement. The University will pay $200,000 a year in rent payments. At June 30, 2020, the
leased facility with a net book value of $2,474,937, is included in buildings and
improvements. Future annual minimum lease payments for years subsequent to June 30,
2020 are as follows:
Fiscal Years
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2045
2046-2050
2051-2055
2056-2060
2061-2065
2066-2070
Total
Less: Interest
Total

$

$

Amount
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
800,000
9,800,000
7,345,446
2,454,554

NOTE 13 SUBSEQUENT EVENT
The University signed, on July 9, 2020, an acquisition agreement with Wesley College under
which, subject to certain conditions, the University will acquire Wesley College as of the
close of business on June 30, 2021.

(57)

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019
(UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
NET PENSION LIABILITY
2020
The University's Proportion of the Total
Net Pension Liability
The University's Proportionate Share of the
Total Net Pension Liability

2.47%

$

State's Others' Proportionate Share of the
Total Pension Liability
Total
The University's Covered Payroll

2019

37,534,188

2018
2.41%

$

31,626,962

2017
2.46%

$

36,106,491

2016
2.54%

$

38,263,420

2015

2.55%

$

16,953,218

2.55%

$

9,397,681

1,519,829,908

1,259,838,601

1,429,901,553

1,468,678,815

$ 1,557,364,096

$ 1,291,465,563

$ 1,466,008,044

$ 1,506,942,235

$

665,268,580

$

368,214,501

$

$

$

$

$

48,488,990

$

48,633,104

47,733,625

48,216,910

48,854,341

49,291,321

648,315,362

358,816,820

The University's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage of its Covered
Payroll

78.63%

65.59%

73.91%

77.63%

34.96%

19.32%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

85.41%

87.50%

85.31%

64.11%

92.67%

95.80%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

6,165,787

$

5,918,085

$

5,066,411

$

4,596,417

$

4,639,186

$

4,543,491

$

(6,165,787)
-

$

(5,918,085)
-

$

(5,066,411)
-

$

(4,596,417)
-

$

(4,639,186)
-

$

(4,543,491)
-

University's Covered Payroll

$

47,733,625

$

48,216,910

$

48,854,341

$

49,291,321

$

48,488,990

$

48,633,104

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

12.92%

12.27%

10.37%

9.33%

9.57%

9.34%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
information prior to June 30, 2015 is not available.
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SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
OPEB LIABILITY
2020
2.35%

The University's Proportion of the Total Net OPEB Liability

2019
2.39%

2018
2.41%

2017
2.46%

The University's Proportionate Share of the Total Net OPEB Liability

$

187,006,094

$

195,965,955

$

198,679,926

$

223,518,401

The University's Covered Payroll

$

47,733,625

$

48,216,910

$

48,854,341

$

49,291,321

The University's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability as
a Percentage of its Covered Payroll

391.77%

406.43%

406.68%

453.46%

4.89%

4.44%

4.10%

3.30%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB
Liability

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
information prior to June 30, 2017 is not available.
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

$

2020
6,450,367 $
(6,450,367)
- $

2019
5,897,391
(5,897,391)
-

$

47,733,625

48,216,910

Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

University's Covered Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

13.51%

$

12.23%

$

2018
5,361,512
(5,361,512)
-

$

48,854,341

$

10.97%

$

2017
5,708,965
(5,708,965)
-

$

49,291,321

$

11.58%

This schedule was presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However,
information prior to June 30, 2017 is not available.
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NOTE 1

CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMS
The State Employees’ Pension Plan (the Plan) and the State of Delaware’s Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust Fund had no changes in benefit terms since the
previous valuation.

NOTE 2

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS
Related to the Plan, there were no changes in assumptions for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019. Assumption changes from 2017 to 2018 include a reduction in the inflation
assumption from 3.0% to 2.5% and a reduction in the investment rate of return from 7.2% to
7.0%.
Related to the OPEB Trust Fund, assumption changes from 2019 to 2020 include a
reduction in the discount rate from 3.87% to 3.5% and a reduction in the healthcare cost
trend rate from 6.8% to 6.6%. Assumption changes from 2018 to 2019 include an increase
in the discount rate from 3.58% to 3.87% and a reduction in the healthcare cost trend rate
from 7.0% to 6.8%.
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